



AGENDA

IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD

Special Board Meeting No. 13-21

Thursday, September 30, 2021

8:30 A.M. (MST)

Brad Little

Governor

Jeff Raybould

Chairman

St. Anthony

At Large

Roger W. Chase

Vice-Chairman

Pocatello

District 4

Jo Ann Cole-Hansen

Secretary

Lewiston

At Large

Dale Van Stone

Hope

District 1

Albert Barker

Boise

District 2

Dean Stevenson

Paul

District 3

Peter Van Der Meulen

Hailey

At Large

Brian Olmstead

Twin Falls

At Large

Water Center
Conference Rooms 602 C & D / Online Zoom Meeting
322 E. Front St.
BOISE

Board Members & the Public may participate via Zoom

[Click here to join our Zoom Meeting](#)

Dial in Option: 1(253) 215-8782

Meeting ID: 839 2807 8293 Passcode: 358373

1. Roll Call
2. Executive Session: Board will meet pursuant to Idaho Code § 74-206(1) subsection (f) to communicate with legal counsel regarding legal ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation, or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated. Topics: IWRB Water Right Applications 01-10613, 21-13106, 21-7577, 21-7578, 21-7580, 21-13106, 37-23110, 37-23111, 63-34753. There are no actions during executive session. Closed to the public.
3. Water Right Applications 37-23110, 37-23111*
4. Water Right Applications 01-10613, 21-13106, 21-7577, 21-7578, 21-7580, 21-13106*
5. Administrative Rules*
6. Non-Action Items for Discussion
7. Next Meeting & Adjourn

* Action Item: A vote regarding this item may be made this meeting. Identifying an item as an action item on the agenda does not require a vote to be taken on the item.

Americans with Disabilities

The meeting will be held telephonically. If you require special accommodations to attend, participate in, or understand the meeting, please make advance arrangements by contacting Department staff by email jennifer.strange@idwr.idaho.gov or by phone at (208) 287-4800.

RECOMMENDATION MEMO

TO:	Idaho Water Resource Board
FROM:	Ann Vonde, Deputy Attorney General
DATE:	September 20, 2021
RE:	Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules of the IWRB, IDAPA 37.02.01 with Retrospective Analysis and Recommendation

Executive Order 2020-01

Executive Order No. 2020-01 (the “EO”) requires the Idaho Water Resource Board (“IWRB”) to review all rule chapters under the agency’s purview by 2026. The review must be a critical and comprehensive review. EO at 2.

Pursuant to the schedule already determined by the Division of Financial Management (“DFM”) and the IWRB, the Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules (“Rules”; IDAPA 37.02.01) must be analyzed in the first year of the review process.

Therefore, the EO requires the IWRB to review the Rules to determine whether they should be repealed altogether or re-promulgated. If the IWRB desires to re-promulgate the Rules, the IWRB must retrospectively analyze the rules and determine whether the rules need to be re-promulgated, and, if so, to recommend an approach. *Id.*

This recommendation memo provides analysis and recommendations for the IWRB.

Enabling Statutes

The IWRB has authority to issue procedural and operative rules as may be necessary for the conduct of its business. I.C. § 42-1734(19). The IWRB is also directed under I.C. § 42-1734D to promulgate rules for the designation of interim protected rivers. Therefore, the legislature has expressly provided authority to the IWRB to promulgate rules to provide process and procedure to conduct its business.

Retrospective Analysis

To analyze the Rules pursuant to the EO, the IWRB assigned a team of IWRB employees and OAG personnel to analyze the costs, benefits, and needs relative to the Rules. That team consisted of a deputy attorney general and IWRB Staff Neeley Miller.

The team analyzed whether the Rules should be repealed altogether or whether the Rules should be re-promulgated via negotiated rulemaking pursuant to the EO and the Idaho APA. The team determined that many of the rules were unnecessary or redundant.

But that a portion of the rules needed to be maintained to comply with the directive in I.C. § 42-1734D(1) that the IWRB promulgate rules for designation of interim rivers.

Recommendation

The Team recommends a dramatic reduction of the rules that are redundant or unnecessary. However, the Team recommends the retention of a limited number of rules dealing with the designation of interim protected rivers so as to comply with I.C. § 42-1734D(1).

37.02.01 – COMPREHENSIVE STATE WATER PLAN RULES

000. LEGAL AUTHORITY (RULE 0).

The Board promulgates these rules pursuant to authority provided by Sections 42-1734D and ~~67-5203~~42-1734A, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)

001. TITLE AND SCOPE (RULE 1).

01. Title. ~~The 1988 Idaho Legislature passed House Bill 780, 1988 Session Laws, ch. 370, p. 1090, amending Chapter 17, Title 42, Idaho Code, effective July 1, 1988, to provide for the development of a comprehensive state water plan which may include protected rivers designated either as natural or recreational rivers. The legislative purpose states that selected rivers possessing outstanding fish and wildlife, recreational, aesthetic, historic, cultural, natural or geologic values should be protected for the public benefit and enjoyment. The legislation provides that a waterway may be designated as an interim protected river prior to the preparation of a comprehensive plan for the waterway. The title of this chapter is "Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules."~~ (7-1-93)

02. Scope. The purpose of these rules is to establish the procedures and notice used by the Idaho Water Resource Board for designating a waterway as an interim protected river, ~~adopting a comprehensive plan for a waterway, and providing adequate notice of any petitions filed or actions contemplated pursuant to the State Comprehensive Water Plan Act, 1988 Sess. Laws, ch. 370, p. 1090, codified as Sections 42-1730-1731 and 42-1734A-1734H, Idaho Code.~~ (7-1-93)

002. -- 009. (RESERVED)

010. DEFINITIONS (RULE 10).

01. Alteration. Any activity using mechanized equipment that moves or overturns gravel or earth. (7-1-93)

02. Board. The Idaho Water Resource Board. (7-1-93)

~~**03. Comprehensive State Water Plan.** The plan adopted by the Board pursuant to Section 42-1734A, Idaho Code, or a component of such plan developed for a particular water resource, waterway or waterways and approved by the Legislature. (7-1-93)~~

~~**04. Director.** The director of the Idaho Department of Water Resources. (7-1-93)~~

~~**05. Dredge or Placer Mining.** Any dredge or other placer mining operation to recover minerals with the use of a dredge boat or sluice washing plant whether fed by bucket line as a part of such dredge or by a separate dragline or any other method including, but not limited to, suction dredges that are capable of moving more than two (2) cubic yards per hour of earth material. (7-1-93)~~

~~**06.**~~**03. Hydropower Project.** Any development that uses a flow of water as a source of electrical or mechanical power, or that regulates the flow of water for the purpose of generating electrical or mechanical power, including. ~~A hydropower project development includes all~~ powerhouses, dams, water conduits, transmission lines, water impoundments, roads, and other appurtenant works and structures. (7-1-93)

~~**07. Interim Protected River.** A waterway designated pursuant to Section 42-1734D or 42-1734H, Idaho Code, as protected for up to two (2) years while a component of the comprehensive state water plan is prepared for that waterway. (7-1-93)~~

~~**08.**~~**04. Natural River.** A waterway that possesses outstanding fish and wildlife, recreation, geologic or aesthetic values, is free of substantial existing man-made impoundments, dams or other structures, and has riparian

areas that are largely undeveloped, although accessible in places by trails and roads. (7-1-93)

~~09. Publicize. To notify the public through press releases to the media, published notice in local, regional or statewide publications, and other procedures, as may be appropriate to inform and notify the local and general public of an impending action or decision. (7-1-93)~~

~~10. Protected River. A waterway protected in the comprehensive state water plan by designation as either a natural river or a recreational river. (7-1-93)~~

11.05. Recreational River. A waterway that possesses outstanding fish and wildlife, recreation, geologic or aesthetic values, and might include some man-made development within the waterway or within the riparian area of the waterway. (7-1-93)

12.06. Riparian Area. That area within one hundred (100) feet of the mean highwater mark of a waterway. (7-1-93)

~~13. State Agency. Any board, commission, department or executive agency of the state of Idaho. (7-1-93)~~

14.07. Stream Bed. A natural water course of perceptible extent with definite bed and banks that confines and conducts the water of a waterway that lies below and between the ordinary high water mark on either side of that waterway. (7-1-93)

15.08. Waterway. A river, stream, creek, lake or spring, or a portion thereof, and does not include any tributary thereof. (7-1-93)

011. -- 014. (RESERVED)

015. INTERIM PROTECTED RIVERS (RULE 15).

~~01. Legislative Directive. Pursuant to the legislative directive of Section 42-1734H, Idaho Code, the Board by resolution at a regularly scheduled meeting on July 1, 1988, designated the following waterways as interim protected rivers: (7-1-93)~~

~~a. Priest River, from the Canadian Border to the confluence of Priest Lake; (7-1-93)~~

~~b. South Fork of the Boise River, from Anderson Ranch Dam to Neal Bridge; (7-1-93)~~

~~c. Snake River, from Section 5, Township 11 South, Range 20 East, B.M. to King Hill; (7-1-93)~~

~~d. The following waterways within the Payette River Basin: (7-1-93)~~

~~i. North Fork of the Payette River, from Cabarton Bridge to Banks; (7-1-93)~~

~~ii. South Fork of the Payette River, from the Sawtooth Wilderness Boundary to Banks; (7-1-93)~~

~~iii. Main Payette River, from Banks to Black Canyon Dam; and (7-1-93)~~

~~e. Henry's Fork of the Snake River from its point of origin at Henry's Lake to the point of its confluence with the backwaters of Ashton Reservoir. (7-1-93)~~

~~02. Designation. Prior to the adoption of a comprehensive plan for a waterway the board may designate a waterway as an interim protected river. (7-1-93)~~

03.01. Board Initiative. The board may consider a waterway for designation as an interim protected river upon its own initiative. (7-1-93)

04.02. Petitions. The board will accept petitions requesting the board to designate a waterway as an interim protected river only from a state agency. The acceptability of a petition requiring clarification or corrections shall be determined by the director. (7-1-93)

05.03. Form. Petitions shall be in writing, signed by the agency head, and shall describe the waterway, or portion thereof, requested to be designated as an interim protected river. (7-1-93)

06.04. Filing. ~~Petitions shall be filed with the director.~~ No petition will be considered by the board at a board meeting unless it is filed ~~with the director~~ at least thirty (30) days prior to such board meeting. (7-1-93)

~~07. Notice of Consideration. The petitioning agency will be notified at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of the time, place, and agenda for the board meeting at which the petition will first be considered. (7-1-93)~~

08.05. Board Agenda. The board agenda will include time for representatives of the petitioning agency to describe ~~the affected waterway and~~ the agency's reasons for seeking interim protection for that waterway. (7-1-93)

~~09. Public Notice. The board will publicize the proposed interim designation of the waterway. (7-1-93)~~

~~10. Public Input. The board will hold either a public information meeting or a hearing, as the board deems appropriate, to obtain public input on the merits of a proposed interim protected river designation. The board is not limited to one (1) meeting or hearing, and may elect to hold more than one (1) of each, or any combination thereof, as the board deems appropriate. (7-1-93)~~

11.06. Board Determination. At a board meeting ~~not more than six (6) months after a petition for interim protected river designation has been filed with the director,~~ the board shall determine whether the nominated waterway merits designation as an interim protected river. ~~The results of the board decision, including identification of any prohibited activities under Rule 25, shall be publicized.~~ The determination shall be based on a finding that: (7-1-93)

~~a. Basis of Determination. Designation of a waterway as an interim protected river shall be based upon a determination by the board that: (7-1-93)~~

~~i.a.~~ It is probable that the waterway would be designated a protected river in the comprehensive state water plan; and (7-1-93)

~~ii.b.~~ Interim protected river status is necessary to protect the values that would support such waterway's designation as a protected river in a comprehensive state water plan. (7-1-93)

~~b. Staff and Funding Considerations. Since the designation of a waterway as an interim protected river is limited to a term of two (2) years, unless extended by law, the board shall consider in its determination process the availability of staff and funding to complete a comprehensive plan for the designated waterway during the two (2) years following designation. (7-1-93)~~

~~c. Repeat Filing of Denied Petitions. If the board determines not to afford interim protection to a nominated waterway, the board shall not subsequently entertain petitions seeking interim designation for that same waterway for a period of one (1) year from the date of board action. (7-1-93)~~

~~d. Lack of Review. There shall be no review of any board decision rejecting or accepting a nomination for an interim protected waterway. (7-1-93)~~

12. Relation to Comprehensive Water Plan. If a waterway is designated as an interim protected river, then the board shall, pursuant to Subsection 6 of Section 42-1734D, Idaho Code, proceed to prepare a comprehensive state water plan for the waterway. The board shall in preparing the state comprehensive water plan for the waterway consider, after review of all relevant factors contained in Section 42-1734A, Idaho Code, whether the designation should continue or whether modification of the designation is warranted. (7-1-93)

~~13. Duration of Interim Protected Status.~~ The designation of a waterway as an interim protected river shall remain in effect, pursuant to Subsection 4 of Section 42-1734D, Idaho Code, until the earliest of: (7-1-93)

~~a.~~ The adoption of a comprehensive state water plan for the waterway designated as an interim protected river; (7-1-93)

~~b.~~ Two (2) years following the designation of an interim protected river unless extended by law. (7-1-93)

~~c.~~ The revocation of a waterway's interim protected river status by law. (7-1-93)

~~14. Subsequent Designations.~~ If the designation of a waterway as an interim protected river is either revoked by law, or terminated as provided in Section 42-1734D, Idaho Code, then the waterway shall not be eligible for designation as an interim protected river for a period of two (2) years following the revocation or termination of its interim protected river status. (7-1-93)

016. -- 024. (RESERVED)

025. ~~PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES ON INTERIM PROTECTED RIVERS~~ PETITIONS TO EXEMPT SPECIFIC PROJECTS FROM INTERIM PROTECTED RIVERS (RULE 25).

~~01. Board Identification.~~ Upon designating a waterway for interim protected river status, the board shall indicate which of the following activities listed in Subsection 5 of Section 42-1734A, Idaho Code, shall be prohibited: (7-1-93)

~~a.~~ Construction or expansion of dams or impoundments; (7-1-93)

~~b.~~ Construction of hydropower projects; (7-1-93)

~~c.~~ Construction of water diversion works; (7-1-93)

~~d.~~ Dredge or placer mining; (7-1-93)

~~e.~~ Alterations of the stream bed; and (7-1-93)

~~f.~~ Mineral or sand and gravel extraction within the stream bed. (7-1-93)

02.01. Petitions to Exempt Specific Action or Projects. ~~Any person who is the owner, operator, or authorized official of an organization proposing to undertake or construct a prohibited activity or project may petition the board seeking a determination that the particular proposed action or project will not significantly impair the values supporting a waterway's designation as an interim protected river.~~ Petitions proposing exemption for a specific project from the interim protected river designation shall (7-1-93)

~~a. Form.~~ Petitions shall be in writing, signed by the owner, operator, or designated official of the petitioner, and describe the proposed action or project and its location. (7-1-93)

~~b. Filing.~~ Petitions shall be filed with the director. No petition will be considered by the board at a board meeting unless filed ~~with the director~~ at least thirty (30) days prior to such board meeting. (7-1-93)

03. Notice of Consideration. ~~Petitioning parties will be notified at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of the time, place, and agenda for the board meeting at which their petition will first be considered.~~ (7-1-93)

04.02. Board Agenda. The board agenda will include time for the petitioner or his representative to describe ~~the affected waterway or stream reach and to explain~~ how the ~~particular~~ proposed action or project would not significantly impair the values supporting a waterway's designation as an interim protected river. The burden shall be

on the petitioner to show that the proposed action will not impair those values supporting a waterway's designation as an interim protected river. (7-1-93)

~~05. Public Notice.~~ The board will publicize the fact that the board is considering exempting the particular proposed action or project from one or more of the activities prohibited by the designation of the waterway as an interim protected river. (7-1-93)

~~06. Public Input.~~ The board will hold a public hearing, and may hold one (1) or more information meetings in the affected area if the board deems this to be appropriate, to obtain public input on the merits of a proposed exemption. The public hearing may be scheduled in conjunction with the board meeting provided for in Rule Subsection 025.07. (7-1-93)

~~07. Board Determination.~~ At a board meeting not more than four (4) months after a petition for exemption from the prohibitions of interim protected river status has been received by the director, the board shall determine whether the proposed action or project would impair those values being protected by interim designation. In unusual circumstances, the board may extend the four (4) month period allowed for board action. (7-1-93)

~~a. Basis of Determination.~~ In determining whether a particular proposed action or project will significantly impair the values supporting a waterway's designation as an interim protected river, the board may consider any relevant information including environmental impact statements, technical studies and any other relevant comments or recommendations prepared for use before other state or federal agencies. The burden shall be on the petitioner to show that the proposed action will not impair those values supporting a waterway's designation as an interim protected river. (7-1-93)

~~b. Approved Exemptions—Conditions.~~ If the board determines the proposed action or project will not significantly impair the values supporting the waterway's designation as an interim protected river, then the proposed action or project shall be allowed to proceed, except that the board, after consultation with relevant state agencies, may impose appropriate conditions on such action or project, and shall advise any affected regulatory agency of such conditions. (7-1-93)

~~c. Emergency Waiver.~~ The board delegates to the director the authority to determine if immediate action is required because of a potential for loss of life, damage to structures, or damage to public utilities or thoroughfares. In such cases alterations of a stream bed shall be allowed even though otherwise prohibited by board action. Such alterations shall meet all other applicable state law. (7-1-93)

~~08. Judicial Review.~~ Pursuant to Subsection 5 of Section 42-1734D, Idaho Code, an aggrieved party may seek judicial review of the board's decision in accordance with Sections 67-5215 and 67-5216, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)

026. -- ~~029.999.~~ (RESERVED)

~~030. COMPREHENSIVE STATE WATER PLAN (RULE 30).~~

~~01. Planning Authority.~~ Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42-1734A and 42-1734B, Idaho Code, the board shall, subject to legislative approval, progressively formulate, adopt and implement a comprehensive state water plan for conservation, development, management and optimum use of all unappropriated water resources and waterways of the state in the public interest. As part of the comprehensive state water plan, the board may designate selected waterways as protected rivers. The comprehensive state water plan shall contain a description of existing and planned uses, and the impact of such uses at the local, state, and regional level for those resources and uses identified in Subsection 3 of Section 42-1734A, Idaho Code. The plan shall quantify, insofar as possible, the unappropriated waters of the planning area, and shall plan the allocation of such waters among the various competing uses. (7-1-93)

~~a. Coordination.~~ The comprehensive state water plan shall be based upon studies and public hearings in affected areas. In addition, the board will encourage the cooperation, participation and assistance of the state departments of Lands, Parks and Recreation, Fish and Game, Health and Welfare, and Transportation, as well as

federal agencies, local units of government, and affected Indian tribes. (7-1-93)

~~b. Local Advisory Group. The board will seek the involvement of volunteers from the geographic area to be affected by a portion of the comprehensive water plan. These volunteers shall constitute a local advisory group that shall inform the board of local concerns. (7-1-93)~~

~~02. Public Hearings. Prior to developing a comprehensive plan for any waterway, river basin, drainage area, river reach, ground water aquifer or other geographic area, the board will hold at least one information meeting in the affected area at which all interested parties will be given the opportunity to advise the board on the scope of the proposed planning effort. Prior to adopting a comprehensive plan for any area the board will hold at least one (1) hearing in the affected area at which all interested parties will be given the opportunity to appear or to present written testimony in response to published proposals for adoption of a comprehensive plan. (7-1-93)~~

~~a. Public Notice. The board will publicize both information meetings and hearings that impact on the development or adoption of a comprehensive plan for any area. (7-1-93)~~

~~b. Written Comments. A minimum of sixty (60) days shall be allowed by the board between the announcing of a proposal for the adoption of a comprehensive state water plan or any component thereof and the close of the comment period for such proposed action. (7-1-93)~~

~~03. Legislative Review. Upon adoption of a comprehensive state water plan or any component thereof, the board shall present such plan for review to the Idaho legislature at the next regular legislative session following adoption. (7-1-93)~~

~~031. 034. (RESERVED)~~

~~035. AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE STATE WATER PLAN (RULE 35).~~

~~01. Petitions. The board will accept written petitions seeking amendment of the comprehensive state water plan only from a state agency. (7-1-93)~~

~~02. Form. Petitions shall be in writing, signed by the agency head, and shall describe those portions of the comprehensive water plan to be amended and the reasons for the proposed amendments. (7-1-93)~~

~~03. Filing. Petitions shall be filed with the director. No petition shall be considered by the board at a board meeting unless filed with the director at least thirty (30) days prior to such board meeting. (7-1-93)~~

~~04. Notice of Consideration. The petitioning state agency will be notified at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of the time, place, and agenda for the board meeting at which the agency's petition will first be considered. (7-1-93)~~

~~05. Board Agenda. The board agenda will include time for representatives of the petitioning agency to explain why amending the comprehensive state water plan is considered necessary. (7-1-93)~~

~~06. Board Determination. At a board meeting not more than six (6) months after a petition to amend the comprehensive state water plan has been filed with the director, the board shall either commence action to amend the comprehensive plan or set forth its reason for denying the request in writing. (7-1-93)~~

~~07. Amending Procedure. If the board chooses to amend the comprehensive state water plan, the board shall do so in the same manner as provided for adoption of the original plan. (7-1-93)~~

~~08. Amendment by Board Initiative. Nothing in these rules shall prevent the board from reviewing and reevaluating portions of the plan upon its own initiative, and amending the plan in the same manner as provided for adoption of the original plan. (3-15-02)~~

~~09. Requests to Amend.~~ The board will entertain requests from individuals to amend a component of the comprehensive state water plan. (7-1-93)

~~10. Board Evaluation.~~ The board shall determine whether to consider a proposed amendment based on those factors contained in Section 42-1734A(3), Idaho Code, and their charge to plan for the conservation, development, management and optimum use of all unappropriated water resources and waterways of the state in the public interest. (7-1-93)

~~11. Legislative Review.~~ The board shall submit the comprehensive state water plan and any component thereof for a particular waterway, or any modification of the plan, to the legislature for review and possible amendment by law at the next regular legislative session following adoption by the board. (7-1-93)

~~036. 999. (RESERVED)~~

IDAPA 37 – IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES AND THE IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD

DOCKET NO. 37-0000-2100

NOTICE OF OMNIBUS RULEMAKING - PROPOSED RULEMAKING

AUTHORITY: In compliance with Sections 67-5226, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given this agency has adopted a temporary rule. The action is authorized pursuant to Section(s) 42-603, 42-1734D, 42-1762, and 42-1805(8), Idaho Code.

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: Oral comment concerning this rulemaking will be scheduled in accordance with Section 67-5222, Idaho Code.

DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY: The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

This proposed rulemaking publishes the following rule chapter(s) previously submitted to and reviewed by the Idaho Legislature under IDAPA 37, rules of the *Idaho Water Resource Board and Idaho Department of Water Resources*:

- 37.02.01 – Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules
- 37.02.04 – Shoshone-Bannock Tribal Water Supply Bank Rules
- 37.03.11 – Rules for Conjunctive Management of Surface and Ground Water Resources
- 37.03.12 – Idaho Department of Water Resources Water Distribution Rules – Water District 34

FEE SUMMARY: The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased: NA

FISCAL IMPACT: The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year: This rulemaking is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on the state general fund because the FY2022 budget has already been set by the Legislature, and approved by the Governor, anticipating the existence of the rule(s) being reauthorized by this rulemaking.

NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING: Pursuant to Section 67-5220(2), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was not feasible because engaging in negotiated rulemaking for all previously existing rules will inhibit the agency from carrying out its ability to serve the citizens of Idaho and to protect their health, safety, and welfare.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE: Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, incorporated material may be obtained or electronically accessed as provided in the text of the proposed rule(s) attached hereto.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS: For assistance on technical questions concerning this pending rule, contact Mathew Weaver, Deputy Director at (208) 287-4800.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding the proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered within twenty-one (21) days after publication of this Notice in the Idaho Administrative Bulletin. Oral presentation of comments may be requested pursuant to Section 67-5222(2), Idaho Code, and must be delivered to the undersigned within fourteen (14) days of the date of publication of this Notice in the Idaho Administrative Bulletin.

DATED this October 20, 2021.

*Gary Spackman, Director
Idaho Department of Water Resources
322 E. Front Street
PO Box 83720
Boise, ID 83720
Phone: (208) 287-4800*

BEFORE THE IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLISHING IDAHO
WATER RESOURCE BOARD OMNIBUS
PROPOSED FEE AND NON-FEE RULES

RESOLUTION TO PUBLISH THE IDAHO
WATER RESOURCE BOARD'S CURRENT
TEMPORARY FEE AND NON-FEE RULES AS
PROPOSED RULES

WHEREAS, the Idaho Water Resource Board ("IWRB") is the executive branch entity with either sole or shared statutory oversight and authority over ten chapters of Administrative Non-Fee and Fee Rules in IDAPA 37, including: IDAPA 37.01.01 Rules of Procedure of the IDWR; IDAPA 37.02.01 Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules; IDAPA 37.02.03 Water Supply Bank Rules; IDAPA 37.02.04 Shoshone Bannock Tribal Water Supply Bank; IDAPA 37.03.03 Rules and Minimum Standards for the Construction and Use of Injection Wells; IDAPA 37.03.04 Drilling for Geothermal Resources Rules; IDAPA 37.03.05 Mine Tailings Impoundment Structures Rules; IDAPA 37.03.06 Safety of Dams Rules; IDAPA 37.03.07 Stream Channel Alteration Rules; IDAPA 37.03.09 Well Construction Standards Rules; and IDAPA 37.03.10 Well Driller Licensing Rules; and

WHEREAS, the IWRB initially adopted its fee rules as temporary fee rules, effective *sine die* of the 2021 legislative session in its Resolution No. 06-2021 on March 2, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the 2021 Idaho House of Representatives ("House") did not adjourn *sine die* and rather recessed on May 12, 2021, without the Idaho Legislature concurrently reauthorizing the IWRB's administrative rules, or the House establishing a date certain that it would reconvene; and

WHEREAS, as a precautionary measure to ensure the continuity of administrative rules and ensure that existing rules remain in effect in Fiscal Year 2022, the Division of Financial Management ("DFM"), acting on behalf of the Governor of Idaho, directed all agencies to adopt all pending fee rules submitted to the 2021 Legislature for review and all non-fee rules as temporary rules effective July 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the IWRB adopted its non-fee rules as temporary rules, effective July 1, 2021, in its Resolution No. 20-2021 on May 21, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the IWRB adopted its fee rules as temporary fee rules, effective July 1, 2021, in its Resolution No. 21-2021 on June 15, 2021; and

WHEREAS, DFM published the IWRB's temporary non-fee rules as Docket No. 37-0000-2100 and its fee rules as Docket No. 37-0000-2100F, on July 21, 2021, in the [Idaho Administrative Bulletin Vol. 21-7SE](#) (pages 4808-5039); and

WHEREAS, DFM will begin the process of re-publishing the existing fee and non-fee rules by IDAPA chapter and will publish the now temporary rules as proposed rules in a special edition of the Idaho Administrative Bulletin on October 20, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2021, DFM directed all state executive agencies to adopt and publish their temporary rules (both fee and non-fee) as proposed rules, and later pending rules, and submit them for 2022 legislative review as an omnibus rulemaking; and

WHEREAS, in reviewing IDAPA 37.01.02 Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules as part of the Governor's Zero-Base Regulation (ZBR) Rulemaking initiative (Executive Order No. 2020-01), the IWRB determined that it did not need to substantively add to the rule and that it could significantly reduce the rule because large portions of it are redundant to statute or unnecessary; and

WHEREAS, DFM advised the IWRB that if it is not adding to IDAPA 37.01.02 through the ZBR process and it plans to eliminate parts of the rule through the process, it can terminate the ZBR rulemaking and effectuate changes to the rule through the omnibus non-fee proposed rule publication; and

WHEREAS, the IWRB's rules implement the duly enacted laws of the state of Idaho, provide citizens with the detailed rules and standards for complying with those laws, and assist in the orderly execution and enforcement of those laws; and

WHEREAS, the expiration of the IWRB's rules without due consideration and process would undermine the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Idaho and deprive them of the benefit intended by the rules; and

WHEREAS, the Governor has found that the fee(s) or charge(s) imposed or increased in the fee rules are justified and necessary to avoid immediate danger to the budget of the Idaho Department of Water Resources, to the state budget, to necessary state functions, and services, and to avoid immediate danger of a potential violation of Idaho's constitutional requirement that the state annually balance its budget.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the IWRB adopts and authorizes the notice and publication of the following fee rules as proposed rules and that they be adopted as published on July 21, 2021, in the [Idaho Administrative Bulletin Vol. 21-7SE](#):

- 37.01.01, (*Rules of Procedure of the Idaho Department of Water Resources*);
- 37.02.03, (*Water Supply Bank Rules*);
- 37.03.03, (*Rules and Minimum Standards for the Construction and Use of Injection Wells*);

- 37.03.04, (*Drilling for Geothermal Resources Rules*);
- 37.03.05, (*Mine Tailings Impoundment Structures Rules*);
- 37.03.06, (*Safety of Dams Rules*);
- 37.03.07, (*Stream Channel Alteration Rules*);
- 37.03.09, (*Well Construction Standards Rules*); and
- 37.03.10, (*Well Driller Licensing Rules*).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the IWRB adopts and authorizes the notice and publication of the following non-fee rule chapter as a proposed rule and that it be adopted as attached to this resolution and presented to the IWRB on September 30, 2021:

- 37.02.01, *Comprehensive State Water Plan Rules*

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the IWRB adopts and authorizes the notice and publication of the following non-fee rule chapter as a proposed rule and that it be adopted as published on July 21, 2021, in the [Idaho Administrative Bulletin Vol. 21-7SE](#):

- 37.02.04, *Shoshone Bannock Tribal Water Supply Bank*.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution takes the place of and supersedes resolution No. 31-21 approved by the IWRB on September 16, 2021.

DATED this 30th day of September, 2021.

JEFF RAYBOULD, Chairman
Idaho Water Resource Board

ATTEST _____
JO ANN COLE-HANSEN, Secretary
Idaho Water Resource Board